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Dead Simple

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

4 \
Originally aired: Monday March 14, 2021
Writer: Russell Lewis
Director: John Alexander
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Amaka Okafor (DC Emma Jane
Boutwood), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper), Brad Morrison (DC Nick
Nicholl), Tom Weston-Jones (Michael Neward), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Adrian Rawlins (Harry Frame), Alisha Bailey (Ashley Haynes), Matt
Stokoe (Mark B. Warden), Silas Carson (Richard Charwell QC), Alexan-
der Cobb (Kevin Spinella), Matt Wakeford (Robbo), Charlie Suff (Luke
Jones), Akshay Khanna (Josh Sayed), Rupert Holliday-Evans (Phil
Marshbrook), Cian Binchy (Davey Marshbrook), Catherine Bailey
(Francine), Maggie O’Neill (Gill Neward), Tiana Khan (Zoe Sayed), Vinny
Dhillon (Woman Speaker), Natasha Joseph (Willa), Tim Treloar (Sean
Stourton), Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson), Diarmaid Murtagh (Vic),
William Andrews (Joe Tindall), Bern Collaco (Police Officer), Ty Hurley
(Crime Investigation Department), David K. Whiting (Rex)

Summary: A group of friends on a stag night are involved in a road accident and
are killed except the groom, a wealthy Brighton property developer
who has vanished. Detective Superintendent Grace is called upon by
colleague Detective Sergeant Branson to help. The search and inves-
tigation uncover lines of inquiry which involve his bride and his best
friend and business partner.

It was meant to be a harmless stag
night, but a few hours later Michael Har-
rison has disappeared and four of his
friends are dead. With only three days
to the wedding, Detective Superinten-
dent Roy Grace, haunted by the memo-
ries of his missing wife, is contacted by
Michael’'s beautiful, distraught fiancée,
Ashley Harper. Grace discovers that the
one man who ought to know Michael Har-
rison’s whereabouts is saying nothing,
but then he has a lot more to gain than
anyone realises — for one man’s disaster
is another man’s fortune.
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Looking Good Dead

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Thursday April 01, 2021

Russell Lewis

Julia Ford

John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),
Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Amaka Okafor (DC Emma Jane
Boutwood), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper), Brad Morrison (DC Nick
Nicholl), Tom Weston-Jones (Michael Neward), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Adrian Rawlins (Harry Frame), Christina Chong (Sophie Bryce), Amit
Shah (Zack Bryce), James Tarpey (Andy Gilney), Kristy Philipps (Janie
Stretton), Michael D. Xavier (Martin Broom), Mitchell Hunt (Rufus
Fletcher), Alex Price (Chris Webb), Cassie Clare (Verity Cantlie), Owen
Roberts (Reggie D’Eath), Sidney Kean (Mr. Seiler), Sally Edwards
(Elaine Dupont), William Andrews (Joe Tindall), Henry Miller (Dr.
Theobald), Callum Coates (Prof. Otto Johansson), Steven Elder (Philip
Stretton), Darren Tighe (DS John Rye), Matt Barkley (David Lee), Boo
Golding (Joolz), Lauren O’Neil (Claire), Nicholas Khan (Erridge), Louis
Boyer (Ricky), Austin Hardiman (Anton), Robyn Ashwood (Mandy),
Katie Brayben (WPC Danni Brown), James Barriscale (Carl Smith),
Paul O’Kelly (Paul)

When parts of a young woman’s body are discovered on the Downs,
Grace believes the murder is connected to two prior Killings involving
sex-drug overdoses. Meanwhile, a local businessman stumbles upon a
memory stick containing an access key to a dark-Web snulff site, where
he witnesses the woman’s murder, and the shadowy operators of the
site warn him not to go to the police, or his family will suffer.

on and see them on a website.

Tom Bryce did what any decent person
would do. But within hours of picking
up the memorystick that had been left
behind on the train seat next him, and
attempting to return it to its owner, he
is the sole witness to a vicious mur-
der. Then his young family are threat-
ened with their lives if he goes to the po-
lice. But supported by his wife, Kellie, he
bravely makes a statement, to the murder
enquiry team headed by Detective Super-
intendent Roy Grace, a man with demons of his own — including his missing wife — to contend
with. And from that moment, the Killing of the Bryce family becomes a mere formality - and a
grisly attraction. Kellie and Tom’s deaths have already been posted on the internet. You can log
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Not Dead Enough

Season 2
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 1

e N
Originally aired: Sunday May 01, 2022
Writer: Russell Lewis
Director: Henrik Georgsson
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Amaka Okafor (DC Emma Jane
Boutwood), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper), Brad Morrison (DC Nick
Nicholl), Tom Weston-Jones (Michael Neward), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Tom Christian (Darren Wardle), Arthur
Darvill (Kit Bishop / Jecks), Alexander Cobb (Kevin Spinella), Jessye
Romeo (Sophie Carrington), William Andrews (Joe Tindall), Michael
D’Cruze (Counsellor), Shonagh Marie (Beth), Joshua J Parker (Skunk),
Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha), Rosa Coduri (Holly), Ben Lam-
bert (Barty Chancellor), Kelly Gough (Roberta Vernon), Amelia Ar-
mande (Lorna), Gwyneth Powell (Joan Talbot), Christina Chong (So-
phie Bryce), Amit Shah (Zack Bryce), Laura Jeanne (Katya Bishop),
Chris Wilson (Ambulance Paramedic)

Summary: Katya Bishop is brutally killed and all the evidence points to her busi-
nessman husband, especially when his girlfriend is also killed in a
similar manner. Roy becomes friendly with a new pathology officer,
Cleo. Bishop denies any involvement in his wife’s murder, and the
criminal convictions from his past.

Branson and Grace investigate the mur-
der of socialite and patron of local char-
ities Katya Bishop, whose entrepreneur
husband Kit becomes the main suspect.
The Bishops seem to have led a charmed
life, until Grace digs deeper behind the
respectable facade and discovers all is not
what it seems. Doing so, however, places
him unknowingly in grave danger.
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Dead Man’s Footsteps

Season 2
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 2

( \
Originally aired: Sunday May 08, 2022
Writer: Russell Lewis
Director: Brian Kelly
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Amaka Okafor (DC Emma Jane
Boutwood), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper), Brad Morrison (DC Nick
Nicholl), Tom Weston-Jones (Michael Neward), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: James D’Arcy (DS Cassian Pewe), Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Dave Lynn
(Mitzi Dufors), Katie Clarkson-Hill (Abby Morton), Carolina Valdés (Dr.
Nadiuska De Sancha), Margot Leicester (Margot Balkwill), Michael
Bertenshaw (Derek Balkwill), Jake Fairbrother (Ricky / Chad Skebbs),
Alexander Cobb (Kevin Spinella), Clare Calbraith (Sandy), Steven Hart-
ley (Sean Klinger), Elizabeth Rider (Paula Morton), Brian Pettifer (Hec-
tor Hegarty), Amy Conachan (Mo), Nick Warnford (Ronnie Welbeck)

Summary: A sinister inquiry into skeletal remains found in a Brighton storm
drain takes Grace down a labyrinthine trail through the past, but it's
not only on the professional front that he is chasing ghosts.

A sinister inquiry into skeletal remains
found in a Brighton storm drain takes
Grace down a labyrinthine trail through
the past, but it’s not only on the profes-
sional front that he is chasing ghosts.

11
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Dead Tomorrow

Season 2
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 3

( )
Originally aired: Sunday May 22, 2022
Writer: Russell Lewis
Director: Kate Saxon
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Amaka Okafor (DC Emma Jane
Boutwood), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper), Brad Morrison (DC Nick
Nicholl), Tom Weston-Jones (Michael Neward), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Seham Aar (Sia), Shamail Ali (Babbar), Faith Alabi (Layla Backhurst),
Ellis George (Callie Backhurst), Daniel Adegboyega (Marcus Back-
hurst), Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Lucy Phelps (Saskia Cobb), Lu Cor-
field (Sgt. Tania Walsh), Alec Newman (Joe Baker), Joséphine de La
Baume (Julia Giroux), Amina Koroma (Kumba), Jayne McKenna (Janet
Telby), Antony Byrne (Jim Telby), Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De San-
cha), Stephen Boxer (Dr. Roger Gunnislake), Rebecca Scroggs (Ari
Branson), Ernest Kingsley Junior (Luke), Clare Calbraith (Sandy), Ju-
lia Westcott-Hutton (WPC)

Summary: A body is dredged up from the English Channel, setting in motion
a truly disturbing investigation that forces Detective Superintendent
Roy Grace to ask himself just how far someone might go to save the
ones they love.

A body is dredged up from the English
~ Channel, setting in motion a truly dis-
P uﬂ turbing investigation that forces Detec-
tive Superintendent Roy Grace to ask
himself just how far someone might go to
save the ones they love.

13



Grace Episode Guide

14



Season Three






Grace Episode Guide

Dead Like You

Season 3
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 1

( )
Originally aired: Sunday March 19, 2023
Writer: Ben Court, Caroline Ip
Director: John Alexander
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper),
Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl), Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Cal-
braith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Heather Ann Foster (Rachel Ryan), Thomas Coombes (Johnny Ker-
ridge), Boni Adeliyi (Mimi Taylor), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe),
Luke Norris (Rollo Mercer), Max Krupski (Miles Hawthorn), Jay Oliver
Yip (Freddie Punt), Andy Apollo (Caspar Barclay), Ben Wiggins (Oliver
Starling), Charlotte Workman (SOIT Officer), Jack Pierce (DCI Jack
Skerritt), Rob Jarvis (DI Sid Barrow), Jo Herbert (Anna), Charlotte
Christof (Roxy Harris), Ernest Gromov (Detective Marcel Kullen), Kiera
Lester (Sasha), Joanna Brookes (Maggie), Nicholas Tizzard (Dominic
Pope), Claudia Jolly (Pippa Starling), Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson),
Molly Harris (Jesse), Tyler-Jo Richardson (Ryan), Rai Endah (Bo),
Darcy Collins (Girl), Elliot Cable (Barman / Andy), Robert Hands (Pete
Winnicks), Henry Miller (Dr. Theobold), Darragh Hand (Leo), Lizzie
Back (Daisy), Alexander Cobb (Kevin Spinella), Sibylla Meienberg (Mar -
garete), Steve Broad (Chris / Fisherman), Kemal Shah (Mortician)

Summary: A chilling event at the Royal Edward Hotel on the night of ACC Vosper’s
leaving forces Grace into a difficult position.

A chilling event at the Royal Edward Ho-
tel on the night of ACC Vosper’s leaving
forces Grace into a difficult position.

17
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Dead Man’s Grip

Season 3
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 2

4 N\
Originally aired: Sunday March 26, 2023
Writer: Ed Whitmore
Director: Isher Sahota
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper),
Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl), Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Cal-
braith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Alexander Cobb (Kevin Spinella), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe), Nick
Harris (James Acott), Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson), Ayesha Antoine
(Carly Chase), James Corrigan (John Nash), Darryl Dale (Tony Robin-
son), Stephanie Hyam (Laura Caplan), Nathan Clarke (PC Dan Pax-
ton), Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha), Leon Herbert (Malcolm
Charles), Ethan Smith (Ethan Chase), Hebe Beardsall (Evie Preece),
Frank Jakeman (Warren Tucker), Mark Griffin (Pat Robinson), Sara
Stewart (Fernanda Robinson), Marko Curteanu (Bruno), Steve Broad
(Chris / Fisherman), David Cramer (Roger Ferguson), Nicol Shaw
(Model)

Summary: At the site of a tragic road traffic collision an unexpected discovery
suggests more to the case than meets the eye.

At the site of a tragic road traffic collision
an unexpected discovery suggests more
to the case than meets the eye.

19
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Not Dead Yet

Season 3
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 3

( )
Originally aired: Sunday April 02, 2023
Writer: Ben Court & Caroline Ip
Director: Will Sinclair
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Rakie Ayola (ACC Alison Vosper),
Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl), Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Cal-
braith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Victoria Emslie (Gaia Lafayette), Amber James (Tank), Joshua
Sinclair-Evans (Tunde), Hollie Burgess (Anna Galicia), Chuku Modu
(Larry Brooker), Adeola Yemitan (Drayton), Niall Greig Fulton (Alvin
Smallbone), Alexander Cobb (Kevin Spinella), Anton Valensi (James
Stettner), Nancy Jenkins (Ginny), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe),
Jake Davies (Eric Whiteley), Mitchell Robertson (Myles Royce), Sarah
Thom (June), Andy Cheung (Shing Hin), Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De
Sancha), Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson), Dan Nicholson (Tyler), Saskia
Butler (Jenny Coram), Katy Brittain (Nicky)

Sumimary: The team splits to investigate a shocking attack on the music scene
and a gruesome discovery on a pig farm.

The team splits to investigate a shocking
attack on the music scene and a grue-
some discovery on a pig farm.

21
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Dead Man’s Time

Season 4
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 1

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Tuesday July 02, 2024

Ed Whitmore

Brian Kelly

John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),
Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Calbraith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Carolyn Pickles (Aileen Daly), Kem Hassan (Robert Macario), Laura
Aikman (Sarah Courtney), Jennifer Macbeth (Molly Daniels), Robert
Glenister (Davin Daly), Ash Hunter (Lewis Daly), Miranda Heath (Dr.
Andrews), Neil Hobbs (Hillman), Niall Greig Fulton (Alvin Smallbone),
Alan Mahon (Brendan Daly), Jonny Magnanti (Max Barlow), Sarah
Leigh (Donna Gilbert), Jensen Clayden (Young Gavin), Alan Mooney
(Ian Padmore), Bleu Landau (Young Clive Ellis), Phoebe Mulhall (Young
Aileen), Michelle Connolly (Aunty Vi), Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Bran-
son), Jessica Ellerby (Marion Dupont), Maria Crittell (Shona), Gordon
Kennedy (Frank Tudor), Grant Burgin (Mark Drake), Alan Turkington
(Sean Barnes), David Sterne (Senior Clive Ellis), Sam Hoare (ACC Cas-
sian Pewe), Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha), Henry Miller (Dr.
Fraser Theobald), Nicol Shaw (Press), Stuart Whelan (Police)

A vicious robbery at a secluded Brighton home, draws Grace and Bran-
son into a puzzling enquiry when thousands of pounds worth of beau-
tiful antiques are stolen from the house.

years.

25

A vicious robbery at a secluded Brighton
home, draws Grace and Branson into
a puzzling enquiry when thousands of
pounds worth of beautiful antiques are
stolen from the house. As Grace digs
deeper into this mysterious crime, he un-
earths a web of ancient grudges — a web
which leads him down a dark, murder-
ous trail through the world of Brighton
antiques, in a race against the clock, to
untangle who is at the heart of this rob-
bery, and bring Gavin Daly the answers
he has been desperately chasing for many
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Want You Dead

Season 4
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 2

( )
Originally aired: Tuesday July 09, 2024
Writer: Ben Court, Caroline Ip
Director: Bille Eltringham
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Calbraith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha), Niall Greig Fulton (Alvin Small-
bone), Renny Krupinski (Lubos Sterba), Jessica Hayles (Ashley), Ray
Emmet Brown (Tommy Adeoye), Ben Crowe (Smallbone Associate),
Wendy Albiston (Susan Stocks), Nicky Goldie (Annette), Jake Neads
(Dylan), Alan Wilyman (Simon), Lydia Danistan (Female Croupier),
Baker Mukasa (PC Croft)

Summary: Grace and Branson investigate a case where nothing is truly as it first
appears. When an unidentified victim is found dead in curious circum-
stances, the post mortem reveals more questions than it does answers.
As Grace works to identify the body, hoping this might provide some
crucial clue as to the killer's motive, he soon has another death on his
hands when a second victim shows up in central Brighton, discovered
in similarly bizarre circumstances.

Grace and Branson investigate a case
where nothing is truly as it first appears.
When an unidentified victim is found
dead in curious circumstances, the post
mortem reveals more questions than it
does answers. As Grace works to iden-
tify the body, hoping this might provide
some crucial clue as to the killer’s motive,
he soon has another death on his hands
when a second victim shows up in central
Brighton, discovered in similarly bizarre
circumstances.

27
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You Are Dead

Season 4
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 3

( \
Originally aired: Tuesday July 16, 2024
Writer: Tony Marchant, Russell Lewis
Director: Dan Zeff
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Calbraith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Guest Stars: Sam Retford (Jamie Brown), Freya Parks (Logan Somerville), Danny
Parsons (Worker), Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha), Jason
Thorpe (Harrison Hunter), Robert Wilfort (Felix Gore Parker), Keir
Charles (Mole / Crisp), Jess Robinson (Adrienne Macklin), Angus
Wright (Jacob Van Dam), Joe Bolland (Evan Johnson), Kitty Castle-
dine (Emma Brice), Oliver Akwe (ICU Nurse), Ernest Gromov (Marcel
Kullen), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe), Kent George (Young Har-
rison), Finn Wilson (Young Felix), [lan Galkoff (Young Mole), Jan Le
(Siobhan Sheldrake), Donavan Imber (Reporter 1), Ahmed Hamad (Re-
porter 2), Thomas Flynn (Fred Northshaw), Alan Leith (Henry Gilbert),
Madeleine Jabir (Young Lisa White), Leo Patrick (Toung Rex), Janie
Booth (Maggie Horner)

Summary: Grace faces his most high-profile case yet when workmen digging a
path by Hove Lagoon unearthed a dark secret that was meant to stay
buried for good.

Grace faces his most high-profile case yet
when workmen digging a path by Hove
Lagoon unearthed a dark secret that was
meant to stay buried for good.

29
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Love You Dead

Season 4
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 4

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Tuesday July 23, 2024

Russell Lewis, Jess Williams

Kate Saxon

John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),
Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Clare Calbraith (Sandy), Craig Parkinson (DS
Norman Potting)

Laura Haddock (Cassie Klein), John Schwab (Eric Klein), Jake Canuso
(Pierre), Daniel Fearn (Shelby Stoner), Marcia Lecky (Angi Stoner), Sam
Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe), Janis Ahern (Pat Amos), Carolina Valdés
(Nadiuska De Sancha), Craig Blake (Christian Muller), Jay Villiers
(Rowley Carmichael), James Corrigan (Tooth), Ian Gelder (Tim Skev-
ington), Saoirse Mai Maguire (Young Cassie), Molly Maclaine (Young
Jodie), Susie Riddell (Charity host), Dana Watkins (Parker)

When a known Brighton burglar is found dead in his car, in gruesome
circumstances, his wife claims that he had turned over a new leaf, but
all the evidence points to the fact the victim may still have been up
to his old tricks and was breaking and entering on the night he was
killed. As Grace and the team work to hone in on the circumstances
leading to the victim’s death, Roy receives a call from a US police con-
tact about a crime abroad which bears the hallmarks of a mafia hit.
The police are keen to trace a woman they believe to be from Brighton,
who could be in danger. As Roy scours the city to help find her, it
becomes apparent he isn’t the only one looking for this mysterious
woman.

When a known Brighton burglar is found
dead in his car, in gruesome circum-
stances, his wife claims that he had
turned over a new leaf, but all the evi-
dence points to the fact the victim may
still have been up to his old tricks and
was breaking and entering on the night
he was killed. As Grace and the team
work to hone in on the circumstances
leading to the victim’s death, Roy receives
a call from a US police contact about a
crime abroad which bears the hallmarks
of a mafia hit. The police are keen to trace

a woman they believe to be from Brighton, who could be in danger. As Roy scours the city to help
find her, it becomes apparent he isn’t the only one looking for this mysterious woman.
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Dead if You Don’t

Season 5
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 1

( \
Originally aired: Sunday April 06, 2025
Writer: Jess Williams
Director: Jon Jones
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe)

Guest Stars: Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson), Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha),
Finn Guegan (Bruno), Margot Leicester (Margo Balkwill), Kaisa Ham-
marlund (Elena Ludlow), Shaun Dingwall (Joseph Ludlow), Isabelle
Shuka (Laura), Madalina Bellariu (Dren), Abhin Galeya (Kipp Kavinda),
Maya Sondhi (Dr. Zara Kavinda), Ewan Bailey (Patrick Morris), Oaklee
Pendergast (Noel Ludlow), Maja Bloom (Allegra), Tobias Jowett (Frank
Kavinda), Arthur Aliiev (Driton), Eddie Mannon (Kona)

Summary: As Grace navigates the aftermath of Sandy’s suicide, his newfound son
Bruno, and a profound personal loss in his and Cleo’s life, his team
is called to a Sussex beach when an unidentified male body washes
up dead in a barrel — the very same morning sees a Brighton football
stadium receive a chilling anonymous demand and be faced with an
impossible decision. Roy, who is at a match there bonding with Bruno,
now finds himself locked in a frantic race to save hundreds of lives.

Something is shown floating in the wa-
ter near some windmills. Later, a woman
finds a barrel containing a body. DI Glenn
Branson calls Ari from the crime scene
and says DSU Roy Grace has finally
taken a weekend off. As for Ari Branson,
she’s on lates again and they're down to
two nurses on a ward of 20. DS Bella Moy
tells Glenn about the victim after his call
ends. Dr. Nadiuska De Sancha believes
the victim suffered a broken neck. She
also notices the smell of bleach. Glenn
wants to know who supplied the barrel.
Driton orders people to get into a van. Laura tells a woman not to worry and just stay close to
her. Driton stops the woman and tells her the boss has something special for her. Elsewhere,
Kipp Kavinda tells Frank Kavinda it'll be good to spend some time together at the game. Frank
gets upset and leaves in a hurry.

Dr. Zara Kavinda jokes that their morning went well. Margot Balkwill says she packed a bag
for Bruno. She tells Roy that he likes the light on at night because it helps with the bad dreams.
They talk about Cleo who is broken. Margot says no one should have to lose a child. Roy is going
to take Bruno on a trip. Dren tells Kona she can get them out sooner than they thought. She
just needs to do something for Baloz. Then, they can have their freedom and passports back.
Kona reminds her that they cannot trust Baloz. He agrees to get out of there as soon as she has
the passports. Kipp and Frank continue arguing at the stadium. Frank decides to sit elsewhere.
Meanwhile, a powdery substance is placed inside a camera battery. Allegra tells Dren to take a
seat when she arrives. Noel Ludlow catches up with Frank at the stadium. Noel says they should
find someone to buy them a pint.
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Patrick Morris receives a call while he’s at the stadium. Allegra tells him that Brighton Royal
Football Club will transfer two million pounds into an agreed account by the end of today’s
match. Otherwise, an explosive will detonate on the final whistle. She warns him not to try to
evacuate the stadium before the end of the match. Dren makes it through the security gate. Roy
and Bruno are at the game as well. Glenn receives a call about the bomb threat at the stadium.
DC Nick Nicholl is told to let upstairs know about the bomb threat. After getting a drink, Frank
and Noel head to their seats. Dren goes to the bathroom. Glenn and the others prepare to head
to the stadium. Dren finishes assembling the explosive device in the bathroom. Then, she finds
her seat and sits the bag down. Dren sends a photo to Allegra to let her know she’s done it. The
threat is sent to Patrick Morris. Glenn and the others meet Patrick moments later. Glenn tries to
call Roy. Kipp is escorted out to see Morris.

Kipp is introduced to Glenn as one of the investors. Glenn explains it likely isn’t a good idea
to pay the ransom. He wants time to find the explosive device. Glenn calls Cleo to ask if she
knows where Roy’s season ticket seats are. After she helps, she learns about the bomb in the
stadium. When Cleo can’t get in touch with Roy, she rushes out of the house. Frank ignores his
father’s call. Dren notices dogs walking around with police officers. Roy notices Glenn nearby. He
catches up with him and learns about the threat and the body found. Roy wonders if the victim
had been working in a lab or a bomb factory. TATP could be confirmed as part of the device
today. Nick is tasked with looking after Bruno for a while. Roy speaks to Patrick Morris. Dren
becomes concerned as the dogs get closer. Cleo goes to the stadium to get Bruno. She tells Roy
to let her do this. As time begins running out, Kipp believes they should pay the ransom. Allegra
calls Morris and says she expects the money to be transferred in the next 25 minutes.

At home, Bruno tries to get answers from Cleo. He asks if there’s going to be an explosion
before running upstairs. Allegra tells Dren to plug in the connecting cable and get out of there.
Roy happens to notice Dren fiddling around in her bag. He sends the units toward her. Dren
tries to get out of the stadium. Roy finds the explosive device. He picks it up and carries it away
from the audience. Roy takes the bomb outside to a technician who can deal with it. Dren hears
an explosion behind her. The EOD technician confirms the ignition of the TATP was successful.
Later, Roy tells Bella they were lucky today. A van seems to be following Frank and Noel. Seconds
later, they are kidnapped by masked men. Roy calls Cleo to tell her everyone is fine. She tells
Bruno who comes out of his room and sees the nursery. Roy and Glenn watch CCTV footage of
Dren leaving the stadium. Roy wants to release a picture of her to the press. Dren catches up
with Allegra and asks for their passports. Allegra tells her she’s not done yet. Dren flees.

The masked men search Noel and Frank who no longer has his phone. Cleo plays a game
with Bruno. Bruno asks if Cleo is a mother. Cleo says she was for a bit. He touches her hand to
comfort her. Meanwhile, Nick and the others try to track down the bomber. Glenn points out that
Semtex couldn’t make it through security. They begin looking to see if anyone could’ve helped
her. Roy says they should get some sleep. Glenn urges him to speak to Bella who wants to work a
little longer. Roy talks to her about getting a new recruit in. Bella insists she’s fine. She convinced
Roy to leave. Roy makes it home where he finds Bruno already asleep. Cleo immediately checks
on him. Roy says he could call Sandy’s parents to come and get Bruno. Cleo says she wants to
be there for him, but it is a reminder of what she doesn’t have. Zara and Kipp talk about Frank
who hasn’t returned home. Zara wants to call the police. Kipp says the police’s priority is the
bomber and not a moody teenager. Dren calls Kona to say he was right. They were screwed and
they still don’t have passports.

Frank tells Noel he shouldn’'t even be there. He believes the kidnappers are after his dad’s
money. Nick and Bella look at CCTV of a van. They go to the scene and find Frank’s cell phone.
Meanwhile, Roy and Glenn talk about Kipp who is loaded. They speak to Kipp and Zara about
the kidnapping. Roy mentions a text from a contact saved as Dalek around 11:30. Zara says
Frank keeps to himself and doesn’t bring mates home. Kipp explains that they had an argument
so Frank changed seats. Kipp receives a message from the kidnappers who want one million
pounds sent to a crypto account. Zara immediately wants to pay the ransom. In private, she
tells Roy about a hit-and-run that killed their daughter Kayleigh and ripped their family apart.
Zara believes losing Frank would finish her. Driton and Kona talk away from the captives. Kona
insists it hasn’t arrived. He’s convinced they will pay though. Bella tells Roy that the female who
made the call to the stadium was Albanian. The callers were analyzed and there is no evidence
the caller was inside the stadium.
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The caller and bomber are different individuals. They also believe the man on the beach was
involved in making the bomb. Nick says the bomb’s detonator contained TATP consistent with
chemical traces found on the unknown male. Nick and Bella try to speak to members of the
Albanian community. Laura sees them and notices the flyer. She tries to avoid them. Laura calls
Dren to tell her the whole country is looking for her. She tells her that Kona didn’t come back
last night and Allegra is asking questions. Kona and Driton get tired of waiting for Kipp to pay.
Noel is pulled out and bashed by Driton. Kona eventually stops the attacks and puts Noel back
into the storage container with Frank. Dren meets Laura who tells her to run. Allegra has her
kidnapped. Dren is thrown into a cage and told it wouldn’t be a good idea to leave now. Allegra
calls someone to let them know they have her. Glenn tells Roy that Frank’s friend is Noel Ludlow.

He’s a new student at Preston Grove College. His nickname is Dalek. Noel's parents, Joseph
and Elena, are questioned. Elena says her son texted her to say he was going to stay with a friend
over the weekend. Roy tells them the kids were taken before the text was made. Joseph claims
not to recognize Frank. Roy suggests Noel was in the wrong place at the wrong time since they
haven’t received a ransom demand. At the station, Nick informs Roy that a black Vauxhall van
was reported stolen three days ago. It has new plates now. Glenn says Kipp’s business is on the
verge of insolvency. He has continued to ignore his lawyer’s advice to file. Bella says the report
is in for the FLO at the Kavindas’. Kipp has gone missing. Kipp finds Noel badly beaten. When
Glenn and Roy arrive, they're shown a threat saying Frank will be bloodier. Roy believes Kipp
has jeopardized the entire operation by coming up there alone. Kipp has to tell them something
if he wants them to find Frank. Glenn mentions his business being on the brink of insolvency.

Kipp admits that no one knows even Zara. He hasn’t been at his best since Kayleigh died.
Next, Roy wants to clone Kipp’s phone and check his company’s records. Frank is given a bottle
of water. Kona and Driton talk about what they should do next. Kona is told to burn the van.

Noel explains what happened when he was blindfolded and abducted by people wearing
masks. Roy asks if he recognizes their voices or accents. Noel says they were concerned about
getting their money from Frank. He says one became stressed and hit him. Elena Ludlow com-
forts him. Joseph Ludlow stresses the need for Noel to rest. Elsewhere, Laura Kristo scans The
Argues article about a male body found on the beach. She weeps while looking at a photo of
her and what appears to be the man together. At the police station, Branson goes over the case
with the team. Nick points out an area on a map where the tests sent to Kipp came from. Roy
says they will make it the target of their search. A short time later, Laura tells Bella that Baloz
"Sea Monster" delegates tasks to them if they refuse, their families in their home countries are
threatened. She claims Zenith Evangjeli was delegated a task that he refused to do. At the police
station, Nick informs Roy and Branson of a burnt Vauxhall van being discovered between two
farms, one of which is abandoned, in a search area. At the morgue, Laura identifies the body
found on the beach as her fiancé, Zenith. Bella informs Roy and suggests Zenith was ordered to
plant the bomb but refused.

At the scene, Joseph tells Roy and Branson that he wants to take Noel home. Roy insists he
stays. Elsewhere, Bella and an armed tactical team raid a worker’s house. At the scene, Noel
confirms the farm is where he and Frank were held hostage. Frank’s shirt is discovered in the
farmhouse. Elsewhere, Bella discovers fake British IDs and documents in a safe. She notifies Roy
of undocumented Eastern European nationalities. A woman claims the bomber shares a flat with
her brother. In the back of a moving van, a stressed Frank is restrained with a rope. Kona speeds
down the road. Elsewhere, Driton watches people climb into a police van. He ignores a call from
Baloz and an incoming text pops up on his phone. Baloz demands he meet him at Dials Way Car
Park in an hour. At the police station, Branson tells Roy that Kipp has been working with Merida
Blue which owns the worker’s house and possibly employs Baloz. He questions if Kipp knowingly
did it. Roy reminds him that Kipp was involved in organized crime. Nick and Bella barge in and
show them photos of Laura working at the stadium several days before the bomb threat. A short
time later, a weepy Laura claims to have believed it was drugs. Roy says Zenith developed the
TATP explosive for the bomb. She believes he did it at a location in Brighton. He shows her two
fake British IDs. Laura identifies them as siblings, Kona and Dren Dashvilli. She claims Kona
disappeared on the day of the bombing and Baloz took Dren. Roy shows her a photo of Frank
and Noel. She recognizes Frank as the son of Baloz.

Lena finds Joseph packing his laptop and files. He says they are leaving Brighton and goes
outside to find Kipp in his car. Joseph scolds him for coming there and admits to destroying his
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phone after the bomb. Kipp asks where is Frank. Joseph blames him for his two million-pound
loss. Kipp accuses him of lying about the bomb being fake. Joseph assures him that was never
his plan and recalls he promised the club would pay to protect their fans. Kipp apologizes for the
club refusing to pay and pleads for Frank’s return. Joseph threatens him if he doesn’t leave. At
the police station, Nick tells Roy that Kipp’s phone is clean. Roy suggests he has another phone.
A short time later, Branson serves a search warrant at the Ludlow residence while Joseph is
out. Elsewhere, Kipp tells Bell and Roy his portfolio liquidation wasn’t enough to clear his two
million-pound debt. Roy asks if Joseph blackmailed his club to recover his two million pounds.
Kipp admits to planning the scheme with Joseph. Zara criticizes him for putting Frank in danger.
He claims Joseph said the bomb was fake and he is holding Frank hostage. Refusing to hear
anymore, she walks away. Roy orders him to stay put before leaving.

At the police station, Roy fills Branson, Bella, and Nick in on the case. Branson believes the
kidnappers received a tip of the impending raid at the farm. Roy orders a search of Joseph’s real
estate properties. At a parking garage, Joseph jerks Driton out of his car and demands to know
why Noel was beaten. Driton claims Kona forced Noel into the car and beat him. Joseph demands
to know where Frank is being held. Driton says he is at the farm. Joseph claims to have sold
the farm that was raided by the police. Elsewhere, Kona receives a text from Dren warning the
police are onto to them and they need to leave. Allegra sends Joseph a text confirming he took
the bait. She and the others start cleaning up the old factory. Elsewhere, Kona demands Frank
tell Dren that he has been treated well. Frank agrees. Kona promises it will be over soon when
Driton approaches and hits him with a tire iron. Following Joseph’s orders, Driton restrains
Frank under Newhaven Pier. Joseph snaps his photo and shares it with Kipp. Frank struggles
against the restraints. Joseph and Driton leave. At the police station, Roy tells his team about
Frank’s photo sent from the phone utilized in the blackmailing.

Driton drags an unconscious Kona into the old factory. Allegra pours a flammable liquid
throughout a building. Dren pleads with her not to do it. A man ignites it. Dren manages to
escape but finds Kona trapped in the building. She tries to force the door open when it explodes,
sending her flying across the room. At Newhaven Pier, Frank struggles against his restraints
as the tide comes in. At the police station, Branson shows Roy a photo of Kona. Roy suggests
Noel tipped him off about the raid. Bella alerts them of the factory fire. Nick says the owner is
Joseph. At Newhaven Pier, Driton warns Dren to stay away from there. Irate, she blames Joseph
for Kona’s death and ends the call. Joseph catches Driton using his phone and shoots him. On
a stolen motorbike, Dren races to the pier. At the old factory, Bella notifies Roy that the body
has been identified as Kona. She suggests it was utilized to build the bomb because explosive
substances were found. She says Dren left the scene on a stolen motorbike. Elsewhere, Roy
informs Noel of Kona’s death. Upset, Noel admits his part in the extortion scheme. Roy orders
him to call Dren.

Noel calls Dren and says she’s sorry. He says he wants to help. Noel blames himself for what
happened to Kona. Dren says it was his father. Glenn tells Roy that Dren is at Newhaven Port,
East Pier. Dren grabs a weapon and confronts Joseph who has a handgun. She dodges a bullet
and attack Joseph. Dren continues bashing him until she picks up the gun. Roy arrives and
orders her to drop the gun. He worries that Frank is going to drown. Roy knows that Joseph
killed her brother, Kona. Dren eventually throws the gun into the water. Roy jumps in to save
Frank and Glenn rushes to help. During the chaos, Dren manages to escape. Nick and Roy
drag Frank to safety. Allegra is taken into custody. Frank is reunited with Zara and Kipp. Now,
Frank is okay with his daddy. Glenn finally decides to arrest Kipp who is given more time than
necessary. Noel tells Elena that he had to do something. They leave with a police officer. Roy tells
Bruno about the fish, Marlon, that his mom won at the fair.

He’s returned to Margot a bit later. Dren is still walking free. Cleo tells Roy that she felt useful
with Bruno around. She doesn’t want to hide what has happened. The reminders are everywhere.
Cleo feels stuck and misses having a purpose. Roy asks if she’s ready to go back to work. Cleo
says yes.
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John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),
Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe)

Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson), Juliette Motamed (DC Vee Wilde), Finn
Guegan (Bruno), Margot Leicester (Margo Balkwill), Holli Dempsey
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When a man is found dead in his hotel, the scene reads like a crime
of passion — the room was paid for in cash and booked in the name
Travis Simmons. Travis has no ID and no bank cards — when Grace
discovers a burner phone, he suspects that his victim was meeting
someone in secret. When things don’t quite add up and Grace realises
that something in this case isn’t what it seems, the team is thrown into
a world where a tangled web of mistaken identity leads to a painful
secret.

Travis Simmons.

He’s been a regular at the motel for the past six months. He always gets the same suit and
always pays in cash. Glenn tells DSU Roy Grace about the woman who was banging on the
door. They have a possible burner phone for Mr. Simmons. Roy wants to find out who he was.
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As the episode begins, Emily Harton and
Toby Seward are together at a motel.
Emily tells him she needs to go. Charlotte
Seward watches Emily when she leaves
the motel. Toby looks at his phone. When
Emily gets a call, she tells the caller that
they’'ve already said this. It appears Emily
goes back inside. Jarvis Brookes gets a
call from Toby who calls him gorgeous.
Jarvis hopes he’s booked his tickets be-
cause it's time they met face to face.
Charlotte walks into Hotel Lenore. She
bangs on the door and yells for someone
to open the door. A hotel assistant tells the duty manager that a woman is kicking off outside
the Fairmont Suite. Charlotte leaves the motel crying. The workers check on Mr. Simmons in the
Fairmont Suite and find him dead. DI Glenn Branson says the room was booked under the name
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Elsewhere, Georgina Driver reads messages from the same man and cries. Mr. Simmons has
sent her a video message claiming they’re soul mates. Roy drops off Cleo and informs her he
has another murder victim. Cleo returns to work. At home, Glenn checks on Ari who seems to
be distracted by something. Ari rushes out and says they're short staffed again. DS Bella Moy
watches the new recruit, DC Vee Wilde, park in a CID only spot. Bella tells her she might want
to consider a different parking stop. Vee tells her to mind her business. A bit later, Roy welcomes
Vee to the board and says she’ll be working with Bella.

They talk about the women who visited Travis Simmons last night. They discuss how Emily
returned and likely took the stairs. Roy and Glenn agree it seems like she’s not trying to be seen.
Then, they talk about Charlotte who was reported by Mr. and Mrs. Tanner. Glenn believes Emily
took the fire exit and exited onto a side street. Both women had a window of opportunity to kill
Travis. DC Nick Nicholl is asked to get digital forensics to hurry on the burner phone. Vee and
Bella keep butting heads. While working, Cleo gets a reminder about her upcoming maternity
leave. Vee tells Roy and the others that she found a hotel room key in Simmons’s trouser pocket.
It’'s for The Brighton Central Hotel. Georgina Driver deletes all of the photos of Travis. Grace
confirms that Simmons’s real name is Toby Seward. He was a manager for Levinson Logistics.
Glenn suggests Toby has been doing this long enough for a wife to find out and to do something
about it. They find out that Toby’s vehicle has been bashed.

Nick calls to tell Roy that Toby’s home address is in London. He has two kids and his wife’s
name is Charlotte. The babysitter told Nick that his wife is visiting Brighton. Georgina contem-
plates calling 999. At the station, Nick tells Roy and Glenn that the only number in the burner
phone was for Emily Harton who works at the same company as Toby. She’s in Brighton as well.
She has a hotel reservation in her name but she’s not there. Charlotte pulls a piece of glass out
of her hand. Vee is busy complaining on the phone when ACC Cassian Pewe enters to speak to
everyone. Cassian tells everyone that the Chief is authorizing the creation of a new OCG task
force. Roy speaks to Cassian in private about being stretched already, but Cassian explains that
upstairs has said this is a priority. Cassian claims he’s concerned for Roy’s wellbeing and sug-
gests stepping back if necessary. Roy tells Glenn about it moments later. Glenn says they picked
up Toby’s wife. Charlottes identifies the body. Cleo tells Roy that they found hair samples from
two sources.

During an interview, Charlotte admits she followed Toby because she wanted him to know he
was caught. She waited for Emily to leave before going up, banging on his door, and shouting.
Charlotte admits she cut her hand. Roy suggests she did it on the broken glass from the coffee
table. Charlotte denies that and blames a car. She confesses to bashing Toby’s car. Charlotte
insists she didn’t want to kill him. Bella tells Roy and Glenn that Emily is being brought in. Vee
asks if she can sit in. Roy tells her maybe next time. Ari is brought in to speak to the medical
director and the head of surgery about her treatment of Beth Dankworth. Ari says she presented
with sepsis so she prescribed an initial IV infusion of 500mg of amoxicillin. Beth had an adverse
reaction. Ari insists it was just bad luck. She is asked if she knew the patient was allergic to
amoxicillin. Although she says no, she’s told it was clearly logged in the system. The report
indicates the patient was allergic to penicillin.

Ari insists there was no allergy recorded. They try to convince her to admit to something so
they can work together. Ari is told they’ll do a full investigation. She’s suspended pending the
outcome. She’s told not to try to get her story straight or anything like that. Emily tells Roy and
Glenn about her relationship with Toby. She insists Toby was fine but irritated when she left.
Emily says she was needed on a video conference. She denies returning to Toby’s motel. Emily
is adamant she didn’t return to the motel. Roy notices something when watching the video with
Bella and the others. They determine that it wasn’t Emily. It must've been someone who disguised
themselves to look like her. Roy says three women visited Toby that night. Cleo and a coworker
have to deal with a woman who has hung herself. Jarvis has flowers and a sign welcoming Hans
home. Glenn confirms the third woman was in the pub last night for a couple of hours.

Her name is Georgina Driver. Glenn tells Roy that she’s a suspected suicide. Jarvis sees a
picture of the dead man in the newspaper. He goes to the officers of The Argus and accuses
them of writing false stories. Glenn tells Roy that Georgina was an investment banker. Her DNA
matches the hair sample and skin samples from Toby Seward. Roy and Glenn check her car.
They find the disguise she used. Roy hopes there’s something on her laptop. They find a possible
suicide note. Bella tells Roy that the brother is there. Tom Driver insists there’s no way Georgina
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would've done this. He says she doesn’t even drink. Tom doesn’t know Toby. Then, Roy and
Glenn speak to Georgina’s PA, Aisha. Aisha says Georgina made some mistakes and was let go.
She believes Georgina was distracted by her boyfriend Arran. Aisha believes he’s in the army
overseas. It went wrong about a month back and Georgina said he wasn’t what he seemed.

She confirms the picture of Toby is Arran. Jarvis returns home and gets his mail. He gets a
final notice from his energy company. He tries to speak to Hans in the video game but doesn’t
get a response. Glenn tells Roy that Georgina started making a lot of bank transfers recently.
She’s having money troubles now. Bella tells Roy about Jarvis. Roy and Glenn go visit him at
home. They find him dead after overdosing on pills. Dan speaks to Sam Fordwater on the phone.
Sam is busy cooking near her father, Johnny. Dan tells her that he’s been in Morocco working
in rural clinics. Louise Fordwater enters seconds later. They talk about the blow-up because of
his boyfriend Hans. Jarvis also had money problems. Glenn finds it odd that the gaming console
is still on. Roy wants Vee to run a reverse image search on Toby’s face. Vee goes to work with a
folding bike. The gym staff member insists Jarvis wouldn’t do something like that.

He says Hans and Jarvis met through an online video game. Hans was in Germany suppos-
edly. They check Jarvis’s locker. At the station, Vee tells everyone that Toby is all of the men.
Roy says it looks like Toby wasn’t involved at all. Bella says someone was using his face as bait.
Someone was using Toby’s identity and pictures to get money from the victims. Glenn explains
that Toby was never Georgina’s target. Vee says there’s a charity with a phone line that you can
call if you've become the victim of this type of fraud. Roy and Glenn speak to Angela who tells
them how they help victims of such fraud. Rupert Thomas does most of the online work. He tells
Roy, Glenn, and Nick how romance fraud works. Georgina and Jarvis did not contact the hotline.
Rupert claims it’s usually teams of scammers. Cleo tells Roy that Jarvis overdosed, but it was
almost like the pills were ground down into a powder before they were swallowed.

Roy wants to visit Georgina’s flat. Roy takes some measurements and determines that Georgina
couldn’t have killed herself. Roy wants to check the victims’ devices to see if they can find spy-
ware or tracking software. He’s convinced there’s a killer in Brighton. At the station, Nick says
two sets of files were deleted from Georgina’s laptop. Bobby says the photos of Toby were likely
deleted by Georgina. The messages and emails are also missing, but someone else likely deleted
those. It’s believed they were deleted after Georgina’s death. Meanwhile, Sam Fordwater talks to
Dan and offers to give him money. Dan insists it should be over soon and they can be together.
Someone keeps an eye on her using her webcam. Roy tells the team that the victims were mur-
dered. He says Georgina had the exact same amount of opioids in her system as Jarvis. Glenn
says there is no evidence of any surveillance software on any of the devices.

Glenn questions why the suspect would bother with Jarvis who didn’t have a lot of money like
the other victims. Roy remembers that Georgina’s brother said she ran wild as a teenager. He
wants to know if she ever went clubbing at the place Under the Arches. They speak to Jarvis’s
old boss, Colin, at the club where he was a bouncer. There was some kind of court case or
something and Jarvis took himself out of the business. Cassian speaks to Margot Balkwill while
Bruno is nearby. Cassian tells her that they're closing Sandy’s case and he wants to offer his
condolences in person. Margot says Sandy didn’t want to speak to them in the end. Bruno says
hello to Cassian. Roy tells the team that Georgina went to a club where Jarvis was a bouncer.
There was a court case involving a guy named Ben Close who was a dealer in the club. One night,
Ben spiked a girl’s drink and she walked into traffic.

She got hit by a delivery van and ended up in a wheelchair. Ben got six years. There were four
witnesses who testified against him. Jarvis testified that he saw Ben dealing multiple times. The
other witnesses were friends of the girl, but their names were redacted. Georgina was one of those
witnesses. Vee gets a photo of Ben. Roy and Glenn recognize him from the charity and rush down
there. All of their computers have been wiped and Rupert has gone missing. Johnny Fordwater
tells Louise she should think about online dating. Meanwhile, Ben keeps telling Sam lies. Sam
just wants him to get over there soon. At the station, Roy tells everyone that Louise Fordwater
was the victim in Ben’s case. Her sister, Sam Fordwater, was a witness. Lena Cartwright also
testified. The other teens testified to having seen Ben spike Louise’s drink with some kind of
powder. Ben was Louise’s boyfriend at the time, but they had a falling out. Ben was ticked off
and looking for a fight. Roy says Lena Cartwright, Sam, and Louise are likely still on Ben’s list.

Roy and Glenn visit Ben’s dad, Ronnie Close, who says he hasn’t seen him since he got out.
Ben’s mother killed herself right after he got sent down. Outside, Glenn tells Roy that Georgina’s
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suicide note was actually Ben labeling her. Bella calls to say Lena Cartwright may have moved
abroad. Roy and Glenn visit Sam who is asked to turn her phone off completely. Roy tells her
that she’s being defrauded by Dan. Johnny questions why the guy would be after both of his
kids. Roy tells them what they think about Ben Close. He says they need to take Sam’s phone.
They recommend not getting in touch with Dan. Sam doesn’t want to give up her phone. She
insists it’s all rubbish and runs off. Roy tells Johnny not to let her hand over any money and
to get in contact if Dan gets in touch. Nick calls to say Lena was abroad in Italy. She returned
and died in a hospice. Sam tries to bum money from Louise for Dan. Louise suspects Sam has
already given him a lot of money.

Sam says she gave him 10k and he gave it back with interest. Louise hopes they’'ve met face
to face. Sam claims he’s going to be there any day when he gets leave. Louise can't believe she
gave all of her money to a guy she never met. Roy wants to know more about Lena Cartwright.
Nick says the Australians gave them a recent photo of Ben and it matches with a passport used
to enter the UK 18 months ago in the name of Edward Stower. Roy suggests the software on their
phones could link to a physical location. They also believe he would've been monitoring Toby.
They might be able to get something from Toby’s phone. Johnny questions Sam about the money
she’s given Dan. Before long, Dan gets in touch with Sam. He says he’s in Britain and he can
get her the money back with interest soon. Dan asks if she had any luck with the 20,000 since
he needs to pay the lawyers to release the funds. Sam suggests using her dad’s money since she
had access to his account.

They talk about meeting up this evening at a little cottage. Sam agrees to bring the money.
Roy asks Bella to visit the hospice where Lena stayed and find out whether she had contact
with Ben Close. He tells Glenn that he doesn’t understand why Ben just woke up one day and
picked revenge. Nick says they're ready. Sam takes her dad’s money. Bobby confirms that Toby
Seward’s phone is packed with spyware. She can get them a location, but Ben will know they're
onto him. Roy tells her to do it. Ben doesn’t notice Toby’s phone turn on. Roy and Glenn rush
to the scene to try to find Ben. He’s already gone by the time they arrive, but they find all of his
computer equipment. Bobby gets into his system and finds his messages to Sam. Conveniently,
they find the location where they're going to meet. Glenn tells Roy that they can’t get there in
time. Roy tries to call her but doesn’t get an answer. Johnny has set up Ben and attacks him.

Sam goes to Louise and tells her about Ben. Vee and Bella speak to a worker at the hospice
who says Lena was upset. Lena said she didn’t want to die with something on her conscience.
Johnny bashes Ben who tells him he doesn’t know the half of it. The police eventually go in and
stop Johnny. Nick says something they found at Ben’s place on the laptop doesn’t add up. Some
of the messages were time-stamped at the same time he was supposed to be at Georgina’s place
killing her. He also had remote access software on all of his machines. There is someone else
involved. The nurse is asked about what Lena wanted to get off her chest. It got resolved. She
had a visit and she spoke to them for about an hour. A woman in a wheelchair came. Roy learns
that Lena made a deathbed confession to Louise Fordwater. Louise gives Sam a drink. He shows
her a bottle of pills and says this is the easy way out. Otherwise, they can tell the truth about
what Sam did to her and Ben. Louise threatens to make it all public.

Roy tells Glenn that he believes they set up Ben and Lena finally confessed. They cannot find
Sam. Louise tells Sam that Lena told her the truth and filmed it. A video shows Sam drugging
the drink. She insists she didn’t mean it. Louise says they all lied and blamed the one person
she really loved. She says Ben’s mom killed herself because of this. Louise says it’s their turn
now. She says it’s time to choose. Sam reaches for the bottle of pills. Before she can take them,
the police arrive. Glenn and Roy watch the video of Sam poisoning the drink. Both of them are
arrested. Bella talks to Vee about her impressive track record. She says they should sort the
basics first. She gives Vee a parking permit. Glenn finds Ari upset. She tells him that she’s being
investigated for negligence. Glenn tells her that she needs to be certain. Ari gets upset and leaves.
Bruno shows Cleo and Roy the piece of sea glass he found. Bruno asks about Cassian and tells
Roy about him asking about Sandy.

Bruno doesn’t think Cassian was really sorry about Sandy.
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Need You Dead

Season 5
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 3

4 \
Originally aired: Sunday April 06, 2025
Writer: Caroline Carver
Director: Nirpal Bhogal
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe)

Guest Stars: Rebecca Scroggs (Ari Branson), Juliette Motamed (DC Vee Wilde),
Carolina Valdés (Nadiuska De Sancha), Finn Guegan (Bruno), An-
drew Knott (Corin Belling), Anne Kavanagh (Nora Davis), Gethin An-
thony (Marcus O’Sullivan), Loreece Harrison (Lauren Packham), Joe
Hughes (Seymour Darling), Tazmyn-Mei Gebbett (Chloe O’Sullivan),
Nimmy March (Margaret Packham), Naomi Yang (Jessica O’Sullivan),
Rebecca Banatvala (Dr. Rita Josif), Kiran Landa (Sara Joshi), Tony
Wadham (Chris Haddock), Cavan Clarke (Forensic Scientist), Luna
Blue Delandro-Abraham (Ava Packham), Joseph Potter (Tim Weather-
ley), Caroline Gruber (Chief Constable), Shanay Neusum-James (Jas-
mine Alson), Lisa Diveney (Hannah Belling), Mia Suda Selway (Anya
Chandanasiri)

Summary: When a woman is discovered murdered in her flat, the evidence first
points to a burglary gone wrong in a case that conceals a chilling se-
cret.

As the episode begins, someone takes
pictures of Hannah Belling in a parking
garage. She rings the bell for Heal Rem-
edy. Hannah receives a message from
someone saying they're watching her. She
goes inside where she speaks to Jasmine
Alson and Sara Joshi. Hannah speaks
to Sara about the possibility that smart-
phones could predict an upcoming health
crisis. She insists the Heal Remedy app
is a game changer. Hannah gets another
message telling her that red doesn’t suit
her. The mystery sender continues both-
ering Hannah until she ends her conversation with Sara. When she makes it home later, Hannah
tells Anya Chandanasiri that she’s bothering everyone because of her loud music. Anya slams
the door in her face. Hannah finds her door open. She calls someone and asks them to come
right now.

It appears that Seymour Darling researches Hannah online. Anya wakes up in the morning
to blood dripping on her face. Hannah is dead in her room. Cleo Morey and DSU Roy Grace
get ready to leave. At the office, the Chief Constable talks to Glenn Branson and the others
about the Benchdale OCG operating at an unprecedented scale. She wants to start with the top
man, Kamran Elin, and bring down the organization. His crimes date back to the fatal shooting of
London journalist Fiona Wilkinson eight years ago. She also wants to get his second in command,
Roel Albazi. Amelia Pardoe was KkKilled in a drive-by shooting and there’s been no conviction.
Cassian Pewe tries to change the subject only for the Chief Constable to yell at him. DC Nick
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Nicholl says Elin and Albazi are elusive. They get lower level members of the organization to do
their dirty work.

Glenn gets a call from the East Sussex Police. Roy and Cleo visit Dr. Rait Josif who insists
there’s nothing to worry about. Cleo says they haven’'t considered trying again. Roy gets a call
before meeting Glenn who tells him about Hannah and her successful app. The downstairs
neighbor, Anya, called in the discovery. She’s a law student at East Sussex University. The next
of kin is Hannah’s ex-husband Corin Belling. They split about six months back. Bella Moy gives
Roy a tour of the apartment. Nick tells someone no while on the phone. The victim’s phone and
computer are missing. Nadiuska De Sancha believes the victim died around 7:30 and 9:30 last
night. Hannah has head wounds and she may have been strangled as well. Roy notices that
her wedding ring is missing. Nadiuska says she likely wore it until recently. Hannah has been
cleaned. They are working on extracting skin cells from the floorboards.

Nadiuska finds a hair that doesn’t look like Hannah’s. Glenn speaks to Sara Joshi outside.
Sara tells Glenn about interviewing Hannah yesterday and the odd text message. Cassian tells
Roy that the Chief Constable is breathing down his neck because of the Amelia Pardoe case.
Cassian explains that he wants swift results on this one. Hannah’s ex arrives moments later.
Roy speaks to Corin who admits he still loved her. He’s still wearing his wedding ring. Corin
reveals that Hannah gave her ring back. Corin claims he was at home last night and didn’t see
Hannah. He says that Jessica, who is with Marcus, said that Hannah was very busy. Corin says
she had a brother named Robbie but he’s trouble. Roy mentions that they still haven’t found
Hannah’s car. Corin says it’s at his house because they still share a car. Roy asks for a DNA
sample for elimination purposes. Corin says he’d prefer not to. Jessica O’Sullivan tells Chloe
that she should get something to eat. Chloe’s father, Marcus, was at the hospital last night.

Chloe notices Hannah’s place on television and immediately tells her mother. Glenn asks
Sara if anyone at The Argus might have intel on Sussex Central Hospital. He tells her about Ari’s
situation. Sara tells Glenn to leave it with her. Then, Glenn discusses Ari’s case with Roy. Lauren
Packham messages someone to say she did what they wanted. Now, she wants what she’s owed.
Ava Packham is nearby. Margaret Packham enters the room and speaks to Lauren. She tells
Lauren that she doesn’t have to sneak upstairs every time she wants to text someone. Lauren
tells her mom that she doesn’t. Someone watches Ava through the window until Lauren closes
the curtain. At the station, Roy tells everyone that Hannah had a rape alarm and installed new
locks. Roy thinks this was personal and that they should focus on Corin. He asks about CCTV
at Lewiston Mansions. Bella says the side door entrance camera wasn’t recording.

There’s nothing suspicious on the front door cam. They talk about Hannah'’s brother Robbie
Taylor. Hannah fired a MISPER report on him three months back. Roy wants him found. DC
Vee Wilde says Hannah reported a former employee for threatening behavior. He was sacked for
bullying a coworker so he started bullying Hannah instead. Furthermore, Seymour Darling’s ex
got a restraining order against him. Roy visits Nora Philips to see if she knows where Seymour is.
She says she hasn’t seen him in days. Seymour is watching them from a distance. Next, Jasmine
tells Roy and Glenn that they had a break-in but nothing valuable was taken. They ask her about
Seymour. Jasmine says she was bullied by him but she didn’t report it. Esme Collins, who was
a volunteer, was the brave one. There was a disciplinary hearing set up for tomorrow. Seymour
lost it when he found out. He blamed Hannah for relapsing. Jasmine believes he would act on
his threats. Glenn gets a message from Nora who just got in touch with Seymour.

When they speak to Seymour, he claims he just wanted to talk to her. He also alleges that
Hannah always protects the wrong people. Seymour says Esme is a liar. Nora told him she did
him a favor because it’s not healthy for him to work with women like that. Seymour says the
disciplinary hearing will give him the chance to tell the truth. Roy asks where he was last night.
Seymour claims he was bird-watching on the Downs. Nadiuska tells Glenn and Roy more about
the cause of death and Hannah’s injuries. Semen was found. Cleo says it’s believed Hannah had
sex in the hours before her death. It appears it was consensual. The ring finger has an avulsion.
There is recent ligament damage beneath the ring area. Nadiuska believes the ring was pulled
off with force days or hours before her death. Corin is forced to give a DNA sample. He admits
that he took the ring from her. He knew it would look bad so he didn’t say anything about it.
Glenn asks if Hannah had been seeing anyone. Corin says no and questions who said this. Vee
and Bella speak to Jessica about her friendship with Hannah.

Jessica says Hannah didn’t mention being with anyone else since Corin. She doesn’t see eye
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to eye with Robbie. Glenn says glass shards were found outside but not inside the office. The
cleaner, Lauren Packham, was the last one to lock up. Roy realizes Glenn is distracted so he tells
him to speak to Ari. Lauren tells Roy that she has worked at Heal Remedy since it opened. She
says she left at the same time as usual before getting a message. When Roy leaves, he asks Bella
to look into Lauren Packham. Glenn tells Ari about the journalist who is going to look into the
hospital for them. Ari worries it was her mistake. Corin has been drinking. He goes to Marcus
and asks if Hannah might've said anything to Jessica. Marcus believes Jessica would've told him.
Corin says he needs something to help slow things down. Marcus doesn’t want to give him drugs.
He relents but insists this is the last time. Nick speaks to Roy. He tells him that he might see
his vehicle on Lewiston Mansions. Nick explains he’s been living in a B&B just opposite Lewiston
Mansions for the last week. When asked why, Nick says there’s some stuff to figure out.

Vee finds CCTV footage of a man leaving Lewiston Mansions last night. Nick says CCTV from
outside Heal Remedy also flagged something. There was a man watching Hannah when she left
work. Hannah was receiving many text messages from Seymour Darling. The last call she made
was to an unregistered number. The last text she received was from a different unregistered
number. Seymour is brought in and asked about being at Lewiston Mansions last night. He says
Hannah was gathering evidence against him. He thought he should gather some evidence of his
own to show people what kind of woman she was. Vee argues with him. Glenn mentions Seymour
said he was Hannah having sex with a man in a car. Seymour didn’t get a good look at the man,
but he saw a man in her window. Seymour doesn’t want to say who he saw. After the interview,
Roy tells the team to go through Seymour’s photos. The divorce lawyer said Hannah and Corin
aren’t technically divorced yet. Corin is contesting the house sale so that brought the whole thing
to a halt.

Corin would get everything in Hannah’s death. Bella says the skin cells found in the floor-
boards are from an unknown individual. The hair found in Hannah’s blood belonged to Corin.
Seconds later, Corin is arrested. Roy tries to get Corin to speak in an interview room. Corin gives
them something and says they should ask for Kate Bullworth. She’s his sponsor since Corin is
an addict. That's why Hannah left him. Last night, Corin was supposed to be at his support
group. He hit rock bottom and relapsed. He went to see Kate. Corin didn’t tell because he’d lose
his job if his boss found out. After the interview, Bella tells Roy and Glenn that Lauren Packham
is Robbie’s girlfriend. She speaks to Lauren. Bella suggests Ava missed her daddy, Robbie. She
accuses Lauren of letting Robbie into Hannah’s office. Lauren insists Robbie wouldn’t hurt Han-
nah. She doesn’t know where Robbie is. She claims she hasn’t seen him in months. Lauren sees
a man and immediately panics. Glenn confirms that Corin’s alibi checks out. Bella tells Roy that
Lauren is likely covering for Robbie.

She froze when she talked about him and someone was watching her. Robbie may be keeping
an eye on her. Roy wants to call it a night. Roy goes home where he finds Cleo with Bruno. Bruno
tells Cleo that he’s mad at his grandmother because she won'’t talk to him about Sandy. He keeps
thinking about what Sandy thought about before she died. Later, Roy talks to Cleo about it. Cleo
thinks Roy should talk to Bruno about Sandy. Roy is interrupted by a call from Bella who says
Nick has something. It happens to be Seymour’s photos. The car in the photo belongs to Marcus
O’Sullivan. Hannah'’s key fob was analyzed and compared with Corin’s. It was last used at 9:40
last night. At that time, Corin was still with Kate and he walked so his car was still at home. Roy
questions whether Marcus got into the car, retrieved Corin’s DNA, and planted it at the scene.
Marcus is brought in and told his DNA was found in Hannah. He denies killing Hannah and says
they loved each other.

They started having sex a few months back, but their emotional relationship lasted much
longer. Marcus admits to having sex with Hannah on Wednesday, but he insists he didn’t kill
her. Vee tells Roy that the skin cells from the floorboards belonged to crime scene personnel. The
team returns to Hannah’s flat.

At the crime scene, Branson notifies Roy of forensics finding another patch of blood. A short
time later at the police station, Branson tells the team the familial blood isn’'t a match with
Marcus. Roy suggests it belongs to Robbie Taylor. Branson says forensics believes the blood has
been there for about 10 weeks. Bella tells them that Robbie was reported missing on May 18.
Elsewhere, Lauren receives a video of a battered Robbie screaming through a mouthgag before
he is shot. Lauren covers her mouth to muffle her scream and frantically packs up their things.
At the police station, Nick tells Roy, Branson, and Bella that Sussex Central Hospital admitted a
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man matching Robbie’s description, with a gunshot wound on May 17. The attending physician
notified the police but the man fled before they arrived. Roy recalls Amelia Pardoe was shot in
a drive-by shooting on May 17. Nick says she was shot when Benchdale OCG opened fire on a
rival gang. Branson points out that the driver and shooter were apprehended but an unidentified
male escaped, who they believe was Robbie. Roy believes Benchdale OCG was after something
Hannah had.

Bella discovers CCTV footage of an injured Robbie arriving at Lewiston Mansions and Marcus
O’Sullivan arriving a short time later on May 17. At the police station, Roy confronts Marcus
with the new evidence and threatens to charge him with Hannah’s murder. Marcus claims to
have gone there after receiving an urgent call from Hannah about a medical emergency. When he
arrived, he found Robbie suffering from a severe gunshot wound but didn’t know the specifics. He
found out the next day about Amelia being killed in a drive-by shooting. Marcus expresses anger
at Hannah for putting him and his family at risk. He claims Hannah promised the shooters would
go down. Roy says the key witness was intimidated and they are still free. A short time later,
Branson tells the team that DNA found in the backseat of the car confirmed the witness’ story.
He says forensics matched gun fragments from Amelia’s shooting with a gun utilized in Fiona
Wilkinson’s murder and other crimes. Roy recalls Kamran Elin was connected to the murder.
Later, Roy tells ACC Cassian Pewe that he believes the gun utilized in Fiona’s murder is why
Benchdale killed Hannah. Pewe argues that Hannah’s murder was carried out haphazardly, not
relevant to Benchdale crimes.

While walking down a sidewalk, Ava insists on playing and breaks away from Lauren. A
vehicle pulls up, a man jumps out, grabs Lauren, and forces her into the vehicle. Lauren tells
Ava to go home. Ava watches as the vehicle speeds away. At the police station, Branson and Roy
receive a call about Lauren suffering severe injuries after jumping out of a moving vehicle. At
the hospital, Roy says Albazi would have killed her if she hadn’t managed to escape. Branson
questions why Benchdale would target Hannah and Lauren three months after the shooting.
Margaret gives them Lauren’s phone and asks them to find her assailants. Lauren tells Roy and
Branson that Robbie wanted to do right by Amelia, so he gave the gun to Hannah and tried to
escape but they found and tortured him. She claims Hannah had already turned the gun over to
the police when she was killed. Upon leaving the hospital, Roy receives a call from Bella saying
there is no report of Hannah turning in the gun. Vee tells him Chris Haddock reported capturing
a man utilizing the side entrance to access Lewiston mansions on the night Hannah was killed.
A short time later, Chris shows Roy and Branson the dashcam footage. Nick tells Roy that he will
drop the SD card off at Enhancement. A short time later, he inserts it into his laptop when his
phone buzzes. Seeing if anyone is watching, he looks at it and slips it into his pocket. A forensic
scientist notifies Roy that the drive is corrupted (wiped).

Roy tells Branson when Nick's car pinged at Lewiston Mansions, he claimed to have been
staying at a nearby bed and breakfast. At the hospital, Nick shows his police ID to a staff member
and requests a visit with Lauren. Roy and Branson race to the hospital. Bella informs them of
Hannah’s laptop being found at the harbor. Upon arrival at the hospital, they catch Nick before
he sees Lauren. Outside, Roy confronts Nick about the corrupted dashcam and CCTV footage.
Nick tells him that he and Jen were having money problems and she asked him to move out.
Jen wants to move to Scotland to be with his family but his life is there. He complains about
not seeing his son in three weeks. Roy confiscates his phone and places him on suspension.
Nick gives him his warrant card. Uniformed officers take him away. Branson says if Sara met
Hannah at last year’s Police Commissioner’s Dinner, so could have Nick. Roy suggests they keep
it between them. Later at the police station, Roy shares his suspicions with Bella and Vee. Bella
proclaims his innocence. Vee tells Roy that Chris saved the Dashcam footage and suggests letting
Tim Weatherley have a look at it to see if he can help identify the man. Later, Roy asks Vee if
she remembers the skin cell DNA samples that came back as crime scene personnel. She says
the swaps were collected at 10:43am. He tells Pewe that Tim is there to identify Nick, captured
on dashcam at Lewiston Mansions. He says Nick corrupted the footage but Chris had backed it
up. Roy asks Tim to contact him with his findings. He receives a call from Branson saying there
are photos of "him" at the commissioner’s dinner. Tim informs Pewe that he couldn’t identify the
man in the dashcam footage.

Roy returns Nick’s warrant card and welcomes him back. Branson shows them the commis-
sioner’s dinner photos. While driving, Tim calls Roy when a vehicle veers into his car, sending
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it toppling over. Pewe approaches and looks inside the vehicle at an injured Tim. At the police
station, photos of Hannah and Pewe are lying on a table. Roy says Pewe arrived at 11:07am and
the skin cell samples were sent to the lab at 10:43am. Nick claims Pewe erased Hannah’s hard
drive but forgot her emails. A wellness app captures Pewe and Hannah at her flat. She says he
has had the gun for three months and threatens to find out what is delaying the process. He kills
her. Nick tells them that he was copying the dashcam footage when Jen called and Pewe erased
it. Roy receives a call from Bella saying Tim’s car was sideswiped by one of their pool cars which
wasn't signed out. The driver took his phone and left him for dead.

Wearing a hoodie, Pewe sees uniformed cops surrounding the pool car. He sees in a car and
flees on foot. Roy pursues him into a building and asks why he did it. Pewe says he knows
nothing. Roy accuses him of Hannah’s murder and being affiliated with Benchdale. Drawing a
gun, Pewe claims to have the gun utilized to kill Amelia. He puts the gun to his head. Roy pleads
with him not to do it. Sobbing, Pewe drops his hand. Roy takes the gun. Pewe steps into an
opening and falls to a lower platform. Injured, he tries to flee when Branson, Bella, Vee, and Nick
arrive. Roy hands the gun to Branson. Later, Branson tells Roy that he encountered a similar
CCTV footage error code investigating Alvin Smallbone. He pulls up CCTV footage of Sandy Grace
seeing Cassian and fleeing in the opposite direction.

Glenn tries to stop Roy who tells him to open the door. Roy goes inside and tells Cassian
that he knew Sandy was alive all this time but said nothing. Cassian believes Roy knows why
he didn’t say anything. Roy does but he wants to hear Cassian say it. Cassian admits he was
having an affair with Sandy because Roy wasn’t there for her. Roy says he was doing his job and
they needed him. Cassian argues that Sandy needed him. He asks Roy if he would've paid the
200,000 pounds she owed Roel Albazi and Kamran Elin. Cassian claims she was gambling and
drowning in debt. Albazi and Elin were going to kill her and her unborn child. Cassian tells him
he was too busy trying to chase a promotion. Sandy’s only option was to disappear so Cassian
got her a new identity. She was supposed to let him know when she was safe but he never heard
of her. Cassian believed Roy might've killed her until she came back. Benchdale was watching.

Once Sandy was dead, her debt had to be paid. Cassian says he had no choice. He was only
supposed to do a few favors, but Hannah came after him about the gun. Cassian says Hannah
died because he tried to protect Sandy when Roy couldn’t. Roy believes he should've let Cassian
die. Cassian says that’s something they can finally agree on. Lauren puts flowers on Robbie’s
grave. Roy walks with Cleo and admits he should’'ve known that Sandy was in trouble. Cleo
suggests Sandy just wanted to protect Roy and Bruno. Cleo admits she’s scared that they could
do everything right and it could still go wrong. Roy says they can take their time and decide. He’s
happy with it just being the three of them.
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Find Them Dead

Season 5
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 4

4 )
Originally aired: Sunday April 06, 2025
Writer: Ed Whitmore
Director: Imogen Murphy
Show Stars: John Simm (DSI Roy Grace), Richie Campbell (DS Glenn Branson),

Laura Elphinstone (DS Bella Moy), Brad Morrison (DC Nick Nicholl),
Zoé Tapper (Cleo Morey), Sam Hoare (ACC Cassian Pewe)

Guest Stars: Juliette Motamed (DC Vee Wilde), Finn Guegan (Bruno), Margot Le-
icester (Margo Balkwill), Shaun Dooley (Terence Maxwell), Catherine
Walker (Barbara Maxwell), Andonis Anthony (Brendan Drewett), Sule
Rimi (Stephen Wolfe), Connie Jenkins-Greig (Sally Jacobs), Howard
Saddler (Sam Makerson), Sophie Ablett (Ellen Maxwell), Lynn Farleigh
(Alma Starr), Paul Hickey (Chaplain), Luke Azille (Richard Bailey), Jack
Barker (Wesley), Laura Hanna (Ali), lona Anderson (Laura Magellan),
Rebecca Crankshaw (Woman in Van), Bill Blackwood (Harold Trout),
Mikhael DeVille (Deepak Singh), Mark Flitton (PC Dave Cripps), Paul
Marlon (Derren Skinner), Ashley Hope Allan (Kirsty MacKaye), Josef
Davies (Daniel '‘Danny’ Starr), Julie Barclay (Maisy Waller), Jackie
Clune (Primrose Morley KC), Paul Clayton (Judge Channing), Karen
Ascoe (Janet Smythson), Danny Mac (Hugo Pink), Georgina Rich (Meg
Magellan), Lace Akpojaro (Officer Johnson), Paul Blair (Colin MacKaye)

Summary: A high-stakes criminal trial of a ruthless Brighton drug lord and a
puzzling double murder investigation push Grace’s team to the very
brink.

As the episode begins, DSU Roy Grace
is investigating someone called The
Merchant. Four months earlier, Daniel
"Danny" Starr is shown riding on a boat
called the Red Funnel. Danny tries to get
through the checkout. Officer Johnson
asks him a few questions and asks him to
step out of the vehicle. Roy and DI Glenn
Branson watch from nearby. The officer
checks the vehicle in the back. Mean-
while, Terrence Maxwell talks to Wes-
ley about a school. Barbara Maxwell and
Ellen Maxwell are with them. Wesley talks
about becoming an engineer. He thanks Terrence for defending him in court and everything else.
Officer Johnson tells Roy there was nothing in the car. Roy cuts open the tire and finds drugs.
Danny flees. He ends up hitting Glenn and uses a phone nearby. Danny is taken into custody on
suspicion of drug importation.

In an interview room, Roy tries to get Danny to tell him who The Merchant is. Glenn tells
Danny they got the number he dialed. Danny doesn’t want to say anything. Ray knows his
mother, Alma, is not in good health. Later, Roy and Glenn visit Terrence Maxwell to ask him to
come to the station to discuss the call he received earlier today. Meg Magellan and Laura Magellan
before Laura leaves. Laura promises Cassie will remind her to message every day. Laura tells her
mother that she needs to do this and she believes her mom needs to do it too. At the station
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four months later, Stephen Wolfe asks Roy about Maxwell’'s computer. The techs are still working
on the encrypted files. Roy asks Stephen if he really thought Maxwell would change his plea to
guilty. He can’t understand why they're so confident. Stephen says Terrence’s barrister, Primrose
Morley, takes no prisoners. She’ll take advantage of the fact that the investigation was carried
out while Cassian Pewe was in charge.

Glenn agrees to cover for Roy who wants to be in court as much as possible. He says they're
closing in on the Benchdale gang. Glenn is confident they’ll get Albazi off the street. Roy admits
he’s shaken up because he missed Cassian. Maxwell will try to disrupt the trial in any way he
can. Danny calls his mother and reminds her he’s in a bit of trouble. Alma is told they're going to
sort something out so she can come and visit. She doesn’t seem to understand so Danny explains
he’s in prison. Alma says someone told her she’s not going to see him again. Roy speaks to Cleo
and asks if she’s ready to do this. Cleo insists it’s what she wants to do. It’s just a reminder she
doesn’t need. Bruno is there to help. Meg heads to East Sussex Crown Court for Terrence’s trial.
Stephen tells the jurors that Terrence pretends to be a humble solicitor specializing in legal aid
work. He claims Terrence is dangerous and a criminal mastermind. A man inside the courtroom
is wearing a wire. Someone in the van outside watches Meg using the camera and says she’s
taking it all very seriously.

Roy testifies about their work to identify The Merchant. He tells the court how they got Danny
Starr. A video is shown of Danny saying The Merchant is Terrence Maxwell. Meg speaks to the
other jurors, including Janet. She messages Laura. Next, Primrose Morley KC questions Roy
about working with Cassian Pewe. She claims their department is second-rate. Morley mentions
that Roy’s team picked up on a reference to the Merchant on a phone tap and ran with it.
She suggests the Merchant could be code for anything or refer to multiple people. Roy claims
otherwise. Ellen and Barbara talk about keeping things normal during the trial. Barbara says
they cannot hide under the covers. Ellen asks if the things they're saying are true. Barbara says
Terrence is great at getting justice for people who otherwise wouldn’t stand a stance. As a result,
he’s made some enemies along the way. They join Brendan moments later. Meg believes she
hears someone in her house so she grabs a knife.

She receives a call from someone talking about her daughter. They know a lot about Meg and
suggest Laura and Cassie could disappear on their trip. Laura is offered a deal. She can’t tell
anyone. Laura just needs to make sure the foreman says not guilty at the end of the trial. Cleo
tells Roy it might be a good idea to formalize things a bit with Bruno. She suggests speaking to
his grandparents about giving him more visits and his own room. Meg has the locks changed.
Stephen questions Terrence about money transactions during the trial. Terrence says he put seed
money into Danny Starr’s business about ten years ago. He got shares in exchange. Stephen says
it’s hard to believe Terrence lucked his way into a small fortune. Terrence admits to defending
Danny when he was caught up in a car stealing operation. When Danny got out, Terrence agreed
to cover the start-up fee because he liked Danny and his business plan. At the station, Vee
Wilde asks Bella what the guys are doing. Bella says they're doing a deep dive review because of
Cassian Pewe.

The Met is going through the same since Pewe spent time in London. Bella doubts Vee has
anything to worry about since she has only been there for five minutes. The jury tries to pick
a foreman. Meg gets a message telling her to get some fresh air at lunchtime. When she goes
outside, she’s told to exploit the divisions among the jurors and snatch the foreperson job for
herself. Roy overhears her and follows her. He checks with her to see if anything is okay. Meg
says she’s just missing her daughter who is away traveling. When she leaves, Roy calls to run a
PNC check on her. Mr. Colin MacKaye is questioned next. Colin says he oversees Maxwell’s per-
sonal accounts and the business accounts of his law firm. He claims Terrence is not financially
motivated. He tells Primrose that Terrence is not a man who cares about money. He also finds it
funny that Terrence would import drugs. When Meg gets home, she finds out that someone has
been in her home again.

They've left a note about her daughter and Cassie. Cleo calls Roy to say Margot is going to
come over tomorrow night. Stephen arrives to strategize with Roy and Glenn. He admits they
need more bullets in the gun. After a call, Grace tells Stephen he has a bullet. Meg tries to
convince the other jurors to let her be the foreperson. Stephen wants to introduce new evidence.
He says they managed to decrypt some encrypted files. The files were found on Terrence’s home
computer and prove the existence of an account in the Seychelles totaling 4.6 million pounds.
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Primrose says the defense has a right to review the evidence before its divulged to the court. The
judge doesn’t think this was deliberate or malicious. Primrose speaks to Terrence who claims
Grace is trying to set him up. He suggests the tech boys planted them after the fact. Terrence
insists he’s innocent. Terrence wants back on the stand. When he gets back on the stand, he
begins blaming Colin MacKaye. Stephen claims he’s getting desperate and finger-pointing.

Terrence mentions Colin’s criminal record and explains that’s why he couldn’t open an ac-
count in the Seychelles. Stephen wants Colin to be testified against tomorrow. During a break,
the jurors admit the Seychelles stuff was damning. Meg tries to sway their opinions. Meg watches
a video of Laura and Cassie zip lining. It appears something goes wrong. Someone watches Janet
when she gets on a bicycle. Laura tells Meg that Cassie seems okay. The mysterious caller gets in
touch with Meg and mentions the zipwire. He mentions that they're going to help with the jury. A
car forces Janet to wreck her bike. At the hospital, Glenn tells Roy there is no sign of tampering
on the bike and no paint transfer. He reminds Roy that they're not supposed to be talking to her.
Glenn thinks he should talk to her since he’s not testifying in court. Roy idiotically storms into
the room anyway. He speaks to Janet about the accident. Later, Stephen says the jury will likely
want to proceed anyway.

Stephen points out that they still have their ace, Danny Starr. A Chaplain visits Danny in his
cell. Danny asks what happened to Father Wilson. The chaplain says he’s filling in. The chaplain
begins talking about Alma. He says they’ll more than touch her if Danny doesn’t change his
statement. Roy spies on Meg who notices him sitting outside. He is late to the meeting with
Margot Balkwill. Margot says she and Derek have no objection to Bruno staying there. She’s just
worried that it might not be the right time for them. Sally and Richard sit on a bench. Someone
comes out of the trees and shoots Richard. Both end up dead.

Forensics process the Ridgeton Park crime scene of a deceased male and female. Nick informs
Bella and Vee the victims have been identified as Richard Bailey and Sally Jacobs, neither of
which have a criminal record. Cleo points out a shoeprint on Richard’s hoodie. Vee suggests it
belongs to the Killer. Cleo says the victims were shot from a distance. Nick tells her Sally’s body
was discovered 20 yards away, heading in the opposite direction. PC Dave Cripps recognizes Vee
as the daughter of his former Met colleague, James Vernon. She denies Vernon is her father. He
recalls seeing her at Vernon’s barbecues. A piece of bloody rope is collected as evidence. Nick,
Bella, and Vee discover blood splatters and tire tracks on the road. Vee turns and sees Cripps
looking at her. Elsewhere, Meg encounters Roy and Stephen outside court. Roy claims Meg swept
her home for bugs last night and insists on knowing who is calling the shots. Stephen warns him
against making contact with a juror. Roy says the jury is being targeted and suggests bringing
it to Judge Channing’s attention. Stephen says Channing will demand evidence that they don’t
have.

In the jury room, Maisy Walter insists Janet Smythson thought Maxwell was guilty and now,
she is in ICU. Deepak Singh says if she is right, there is a spy in the house. Meg suggests
Maisy has been watching many movies. Sam Makerson tells them that such jury tampering
is rare. Maisy criticizes Meg, the jury foreman, for having nothing constructive to say. In the
courtroom, Channing announces the trial will move forward, although Colin MacKaye will no
longer testify. He expresses his disapproval of case tampering and threatens to discharge the
jury if he suspects it. At Harborside Way, Branson informs Roy that Colin left two months’ rent
and a note, requesting his possessions to be sold and a portion of the money given to his sister,
Kirsty MacKaye. The landlady never saw him. Branson finds Colin’s motorcycle and passport
missing. Kirsty tells them that she spoke with Colin at 8pm last night. She claims he was upset
about Maxwell blaming him for the police finding something on his computer and had plans to
leave. She voices concern about him doing something stupid. Branson asks if she thinks Colin
never left his past behind. Upon leaving, they receive a call from Vee saying Colin’s motorcycle
was captured on a seafront traffic camera at 10pm last night. Roy suggests the driver could be
anyone.

At the East Sussex Police Station, Vee utilizes Bella’s ID to search Cripps in the database.
Vernon’s, a former DCI at Chapelwood, profile pops up on the screen. He was dismissed for
gross misconduct. At court, Branson confronts Roy about his obsession with Maxwell. Roy walks
away without responding. In the courtroom, Roy looks around while Stephen questions Danny
about his role in a drug ring. He asks if the Merchant is in the courtroom. Danny says no and
denies the Merchant exists. Holding his sworn statement, Stephen reminds him that he identified
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Terrance as the Merchant. Danny claims Roy pressured and threatened him. Stephen says that
is not what happened, according to the interrogation recording. Danny tells the court that Roy is
obsessed with Maxwell. Stephen says no further questions. Roy storms out of the courtroom. In
the jury room, Maisy, Hugo Pink, and Harold Trout discuss Starr changing his statement. Maisy
suggests they got to him as well. Meg argues that what they are suggesting is speculation and
walks out. Outside the court, Roy receives a call from Vee saying Colin visited Barbara’s salon
yesterday. Upon arrival at the salon, Roy finds Brendan speaking with Barbara. He questions
why she wasn’t at court. She proclaims Maxwell’s innocence. He tells her that Maxwell blames
Colin for the police finding encrypted files on his computer. She says Colin is their bookkeeper
and claims he said he would be gone for a bit.

At the police department, Bella explains her theory of how Sally and Richard’s murders were
carried out. Sally was shot while trying to flee the scene and forensics never recovered any bullets
from the scene. Nick believes Colin is the third victim because his DNA was found at the scene.
Pointing at the traffic photo, Roy says the driver isn’t Colin. At the beach, Meg meets a friend.
At the police station, Roy and Branson discuss Brendan’s extensive criminal history. Branson
says Brendan has laid low for 10 years. At the beach, Meg warns her friend that they are being
watched. A man watches them from the rooftop of a building. At the police station, Branson tells
Roy that Maxwell was Brendan’s solicitor in 2004. He lost the case and Brendan got a seven-year
sentence for intent to supply. There is no evidence of Brendan being associated with Colin or
Starr. At the beach, Meg’s friend urges her to go to the police. Meg says to protect Cassie and
Laura, she must get a not-guilty verdict. At the police station, Vee shows Nick and Bella footage
of Colin’s motorcycle passing Shoreham Harbour at 10:30pm and a Brightfield Auto Repair van
traveling in the opposite direction 10 minutes later. She says the van utilizes a ramp to load and
offload motorbikes.

At Brightfield Auto repair, Branson and Roy order Derren Skinner to open his van. Skinner
pulls the door open to reveal motorcycle gear, no bike. At the police station, Nick and Vee watch
footage of a bloody-faced Skinner putting something into his van. Elsewhere, Roy asks Skinner if
he is familiar with Colin. Skinner says no. Brendan arrives and introduces himself to Roy. Bella
notifies Roy that Skinner is the Ridgeton Park shooter and is affiliated with Brendan. Skinner
draws a gun. Branson kicks the van door, knocking Skinner off balance. Brendan retrieves a
gun. Roy and Branson seek refuge behind a vehicle. Brendan and Skinner open fire on them.
Roy and Branson run into the building. A pursuit ensues. Roy discovers Colin’s body inside
the building. Branson and Skinner wrestle over a gun and it misfires. Roy knocks Skinner out.
Branson shoots Brendan. Roy asks him to identify the Merchant. Brendan claims it is Maxwell.
At the police station, Branson informs Roy that a bullet recovered from the Ridgeton Park crime
scene was a match to Skinner’s gun which has Brendan’s partial print on it. Roy questions why
Brendan readily identified Maxwell as the Merchant and how Barbara knew Starr changed his
testimony when she didn’t go to court today.

At jail, Terry accuses Barbara of betraying him. At the police station, Barbara Devlin’s file
reveals two drug charges in 2002 and 2003. Her boyfriend, Brendan, was also charged. Barbara’s
solicitor, Maxwell, got her off and Brendan a seven-year sentence. Brendan is Ellen’s father.
Bella suggests the Merchant is Barbara. At jail, Barbara admits to being the Merchant. Maxwell
accuses her of targeting him to be her scapegoat. She promises to have his back. He orders her
to get out. In the courtroom, Channing dismisses the jury to allow Roy to explain Colin’s absence
yesterday. Roy says Colin was murdered to keep him quiet. Roy tells the court that Terrence
is innocent. He’s the victim of a framing plot orchestrated by Brendan and Barbara. They have
evidence linking them to the murder of Colin MacKaye and two innocent bystanders in Ridgeton
Park. Roy tells the jury that Janet is out of the ICU and has made a full recovery. He asks if
anyone else has been threatened. Meg says they have Laura and Cassie. Barbara is marched
to Roy and asks what he thinks he knows. Roy says it was a mistake for Danny to change his
testimony when she wasn’t in court. He also knows about her friends in Ecuador threatening
Meg’s daughter, Laura. Roy asks her to call them off. Bella finds Vee freaking out in her car.
Bella says something tells her that PC in Ridgeton Park wasn’t mistaken. He likely worked with
Vee’s dad in the Met. Vee says she found out he was suspected of killing an informant. He left
when she was 16 because he was a drunk.

Bella tells her she doesn’t need to run anymore because this is where she belongs. Meg gets a
call from her daughter who is just fine. Laura is ready to come home. Terrence visits Barbara at
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the jail as her client. He tells her he loves her. Barbara knows she doesn’t deserve him. Terrence
says he needs her signature to make it official that she’ll be retaining his services. Later, Glenn
talks to Roy about losing the baby. Glenn says he just wanted to give him space to grief. He
believes Roy can be a great dad to Bruno. Roy doesn’t think he’s free of it yet. Cassian wants to
see Roy. Vee receives a call from her dad. She doesn’t want to talk to Bella about it. Roy goes to
the jail to speak to Cassian Pewe who says they can be civil. Cassian mentions Benchdale. He
says Benchdale has communicated something that impacts Roy. They killed Sandy and made it
look like a suicide.

Cassian goes on to say Albazi was sighted in Munich two days before Sandy’s death. He’s not
sure that was a car accident either. Sandy’s debt still isn’t paid. Benchdale knows she has a son.
Albazi’s failure to recover the debt led to his family getting seriously hurt. He’s out for blood.
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0504 (Ellen Maxwell) 0503 (Dr. Rita Josif)
Daniel Adegboyega...........cooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin. 1 JulieBarclay............ooooiiiiiiin 1
0203 (Marcus Backhurst) 0504 (Maisy Waller)
Boni Adeliyi. .. .ooveineiineie i 1 JackBarker............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiin 1
0301 (Mimi Taylor) 0504 (Wesley)
Janis ANern..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Matt Barkley . ....oovuuuiiieeeiiiiieeeeiiieeeaiaanss 1
0404 (Pat Amos) 0102 (David Lee)
Laura AIKIman...........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiin.. 1 Russell Barnett. . ............ueeeeeeeeeeiiiieanaaaaaeaa... 1
0401 (Sarah Courtney) 0502 (Colin)
Lace AKPOJaro ............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 James Barriscale. ... 1
. 0504 (Officer Johnson) 0102 (Carl Smith)
OLVEr AKWE . ..ottt ettt 1 Joséphine de La BaUMe ...........cuvuieiaiaiennnnn.. 1
0403 (ICU Nurse) 0203 (Julia Giroux)
Faith Alabi......oooiiniii i et 1 Hebe Beardsall ... ..o i, 1
Wen d?rzgl?t))i(;t?;lla Backhurst) 1 0302 (Evie Preece)
"""""""""""""""""""""""" Madalina Bellariu................cociiiiiiiinenena. 1
0402 (Susan Stocks) 0501 (Dren)
Shamail Ali......ccooiiiiiiiii i i, 1 .
0203 (Babbar) Michael Bertenshaw ...........coviiiiiiiiiiinnnn.n. 1
Arthur ALHEV. . ... 1 0202 (Derek Balkwill
0501 (Driton) Cian Binchy ... 1
Ashley Hope Allan.............c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenn.. 1 . 0101 (Davey Marshbrook)
0504 (Kirsty MacKaye) Bill BlacKWood .. ...vvitiiiei ittt 1
Tona ANAerSOm. .. ..ottt it et eai e 1 0504 (Harold Trout)
0504 (Laura Magellan) Paul Blair. .. ..ot e 1
William ANATEWS . ...ttt 3 0504 (Colin MacKaye)
0101 (Joe Tindall); 0102 (Joe Tindall); 0201 (Joe CraigBlake..........ooooiiiiiiiiii i 1
Tindall) 0404 (Christian Muller)
Andonis ANthONY. ..........cooouiiuiiiiie i aeaen.. 1 Maja Bloom.......ooiiiiiiii i 1
0504 (Brendan Drewett) 0501 (Allegra)
Gethin ANthony ........ovvviiiiiie i eieeennns 1 JoeBolland..........ooiiiiiiii i 1
0503 (Marcus O’Sullivan) 0403 (Evan Johnson)
Ayesha ANtoINe. ........c.oviuiiiiiiii i 1 Janie Booth ............. ..o o 1
0302 (Carly Chase) 0403 (Maggie Horner)
ANdy APOLIO. ..o e 1 Stephen BoXer...........cocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0301 (Caspar Barclay) 0203 (Dr. Roger Gunnislake)
Amelia Armande ..o 1 Louis BOYEI.....ooviiiiiiiiiii i 1
0201 (Lorna) 0102 (Ricky)
Karen Asco€............oooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 Katie Brayben .........c.o.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaenne, 1
0504 (Janet Smythson) 0102 (WPC Danni Brown)
Robyn Ashwood ... 1 Katy Brittain .......ooeeieeie et eeeeenn 1
0102 (Mandy) 0303 (Nicky)
Lexi Austin-Jones...................oo 1 Steve Broad. ........ooiiiiiiiiiii i 2
0502 (Duty Manager) 0301 (Chris / Fisherman); 0302 (Chris / Fisher-
Luke Azille.......... ... 1 man)
0504 (Richard Bailey) Joanna BrooKeS . ........uiiureiiiieeiiieeeiieeeiaeans 1
0301 (Maggie)
B Ray Emmet Brown...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin.. 1
0402 (Tommy Adeoye)
772 () S - o) S 1 Hollie BUIgeSS......ovvviiiiiiiiiiiie i 1
0301 (Daisy) 0303 (Anna Galicia)
AlishaBailey .........cooiiiiiiiiiii i 1 GrantBurgin.....................ooon 1

0101 (Ashley Haynes) 0401 (Mark Drake)



Grace Episode Guide
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0101 (Harry Frame); 0102 (Harry Frame) 0201 (Cleo Morey); 0202 (Cleo Morey); 0203 (Cleo
Sam Retford ... 1 Morey)

0403 (Jamie Brown) James Tarpey .......oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
Georgina Rich ... 1 0102 (Andy Gilney)

0504 (Meg Magellan) Sarah Thom ...l 1
Tyler-Jo Richardson ............coooiiiiiiiiinninenn 1 0303 (June)

0301 (Ryan) Jason Thorpe. ... ... 1
Susie Riddell ... 1 0403 (Harrison Hunter)

0404 (Charity host) DarrenTighe ... 1
Elizabeth Rider...........ooiiiiiii i 1 0102 (DS John Rye)

0202 (Paula Morton) Nicholas Tizzard...........ccooiiiiiiiiiii i 1
Sule RiMi. ..ottt e 1 0301 (Dominic Pope)

0504 (Stephen Wolfe) Tim TrelOoar. . ..ot e e e et 1
Owen RODEerts ..ot 1 0101 (Sean Stourton)

0102 (Reggie D’Eath) DN 40\ 200 o V< 1
Mitchell RODertSon . .....o.ovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 1 0502 (Louise Fordwater)

0303 (Myles Royce) Alan Turkington................ooiiiiiinn 1
JESS RODINSOI . ..t itt e i 1 0401 (Sean Barnes)

0403 (Adrienne Macklin)
JeSSYE ROIMEO ... vvet ettt i 1 V

0201 (Sophie Carrington)

Carolina Valdés...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiianns 11
S 0201 (Nadiuska De Sancha); 0202 (Dr. Nadiuska
De Sancha); 0203 (Nadiuska De Sancha); 0302

Howard Saddler...........ooviiiiieineiienineeannnnnn. 1 (Nadiuska De Sancha); 0303 (Nadiuska De San-
0504 (Sam Makerson) cha); 0401 (Nadiuska De Sancha); 0402 (Na-
Briony Scarlett .. ..........vvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaaaaaaa... 1 diuska De Sancha); 0403 (Nadiuska De San-
0502 (Aisha) cha); 0404 (Nadiuska De Sancha); 0501 (Na-
John Schwab.......cooiiiiiiiiiieeee s 1 diuska De Sancha); 0503 (Nadiuska De San-
0404 (Eric Klein) cha)
REDECCA SCIOZES e vvvviat e ettt 9 Anton Valensi............oooviiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0101 (Ari Branson); 0203 (Ari Branson); 0301 (Ari 0303 (James Stettner)
Branson); 0302 (Ari Branson); 0303 (Ari Bran- Jay VIHers. .....ooiui 1
son); 0401 (Ari Branson); 0501 (Ari Branson); 0404 (Rowley Carmichael)
0502 (Ari Branson); 0503 (Ari Branson)
Mia Suda SeIWay .. ...ovvetreiii i 1 W
0503 (Anya Chandanasiri)
Amit Shah ... ..o 2
0102 (Zack Bryce); 0201 (Zack Bryce) Tony Wadham SRR LR L CR LR LR TP R RE PR RRRERRERRRTY: 1
Kemal Shah .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0503 (Chris Haddock)
0301 (Mortician) Matt Wakeford. ........oooiviiiniiiii i 1
NIiCOL SHAW . . ottt ettt ettt 2 0101 (Robbo)
0302 (Model); 0401 (Press) Catherine WalKer. ...........oviiiiiiiiiiiiii i aneann,s 1
Michael SHea.........vvuiiiiiiiiie it 1 0504 (Barbara Maxwell)
0502 (Ben Close / Rupert Thomas) Nick Warnford. ..o 1
Isabelle ShUKa .. .ovvvnetiie et 1 0202 (Ronnie Welbeck)
0501 (Laura) Dana WatKins . .......cooiiiiii i cii e 1
Cat SIMMONS . ..ottt ettt 1 0404 (Parker)
0502 (Charlotte Seward) Julia Westcott-Hutton .............cooviiiiiiina.. 1
Joshua Sinclair-Evans.............ccoooiiiiiiininnnann.. 1 0203 (WPC)
0303 (Tunde) Stuart Whelan...........ocoviiiiiiii i iiie e 1
Ethan Smith..............cooiiiiiiii 1 0401 (Police)
0302 (Ethan Chase) Jessica Whitehurst............ ..., 1
Liam Smith......cooooviiiiiii i i 1 ) 0502 (Bopby)
0502 (Ronnie Close) David K. Whiting ..., 1
Maya SONdhi . ...oovviiiiiieeeee e 1 0.10} (Rex)
0501 (Dr. Zara Kavinda) Ben Wiggins ... 1
David SteIrNe ......ooviiiiiiii i 1 0301 (Oliver Starling)
0401 (Senior Clive Ellis) Robert Wilfort ..ot 1
Sara SEEWATT ..ottt 1 0403 (Felix Gore Parker)
0302 (Fernanda Robinson) Chris WIlSOM. ..ottt 1
Matt StOKOE ...ttt ettt 1 0201 (Ambulance Paramedic)
0101 (Mark B. Warden) Finn Wilson.......... SRR R LR ERRE PR PR RERERREPRRTY: 1
Charlie SUFT. .. ...cooiiii i 1 0403 (Young Felix)
0101 (Luke Jones) Alan Wllymar.l ............................................ 1
Emily SWain . .....oooiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiieee e 1 0402 (Simon)
0502 (Head of Surgery) Charlotte Workman .................ooooiiiiiiiiinon... 1
0301 (SOIT Officer)
Angus Wright........ ... 1
T 0403 (Jacob Van Dam)
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Nicola Wright...........ooo i 1
0502 (Angela)

Michael D. Xavier........oouvuiniineniiiieennnnnnnnns 1
0102 (Martin Broom)

NaomiYang.........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin 1
0503 (Jessica O’Sullivan)

Adeola Yemitan............coviiiiiiiii i 1
0303 (Drayton)

Jay OHVEr Yip ...oovviniiiiiii i 1

0301 (Freddie Punt)
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